Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

East Montpelier Calais

1130 Gallison Hill Road
Montpelier, VT 05602
Phone (802) 229-0553
Fax (802) 229-2761

) B
¥
1

~e

U-32

Washington Central Unified Union Vs Wortar
School Board Meeting
9.17.25
6:15-9:15 PM
(In-Person & Virtual)
U-32 Middle & High School
930 Gallison Hill Rd
Montpelier, VT

Virtual Meeting Information
https://tinyurl.com/c48fty3u
Meeting ID: 849 3594 9997
Password: 297072
Dial by Your Location: 1-929-205-6099

1. Call To Order

2. Welcome 5 minutes
2.1. Adjustments to The Agenda
2.2. Reception of Guests
2.3. Public Comments-Time limit strictly enforced, see note 15 minutes

3. Presentations: 45 minutes
3.1. Board Budget Training

4. Reports 15 minutes
4.1. Superintendent/Central Office Leadership Team (COLT) Report — pg. 4
4.1.1.Early Education Task Force Update — pg. 8
4.2. Principal Report - pg. 11
4.3. Student Report
4.4. Configuration Committee Update
4.5. Community Schools Report — pg. 17
4.6. Central Vermont Career Center Report
4.7. VSBA Report




10.

1.

12.

13.

Board Operations ( Discussion/Action) 45 minutes
5.1. Budget Development Timeline & Priorities — pg. 19
5.2. Board Legislative Input
5.3. Act73
5.3.1.Board Q& A
5.4. Proposed Resolution — pg. 21
5.5. Affirm Policy 25-26 Workplan — pg. 26
5.6. Appoint Board Member PROXY for VSBA Annual Meeting
5.7. Adopt Board Norms — pg. 30

Policy ( Discussion/Action) 15 minutes
6.1. First Readings

6.1.1.F5 Behavior Threat Assessment Teams — pg. 32

6.1.2.C47 Student Exchange — pg. 34

6.1.3.C70 Use of Restraint and Seclusion — pg. 37

6.1.4.F46 Flag Raising — pg. 43

Finance Committee ( Discussion/Action) 5 minutes
7.1. Approve Combined FY 26 Capital Improvement Project Scope & Budget — pg. 44

Personnel (Discussion/Action) 5 minutes
8.1. Approve New Teachers, Resignations, Leave of Absence, and Changes in FTE — pg. 46

Consent Agenda (Discussion/Action) 5 minutes
9.1. Approve Minutes of 9.3.25 —pg. 48
9.2. Board Orders

Future Agenda Items 5 minutes
Board Reflections 10 minutes
Public Comments: Time limit strictly enforced, see note 15 minutes
Adjourn



NOTE: To ensure the board has time to conduct its business, the board will adhere to a strict 1.5
minute public comment time limit per person. Microphones will be muted when time is up. If
there is not enough time on the agenda for all members of the public wishing to comment at the
beginning of the meeting, there is additional public comment at the end of the meeting.

WCUUSD Board Norms - Adopted November 18,2020

* Public input —Notify the community about public forums and opportunities for public comment at board meetings.

* Community involvement during regular meetings of the board — Every meeting will include at least one opportunity
for public comment. Public comment is an opportunity for board members to listen and ask clarifying questions. If a
board member feels a concern raised in public comment warrants further board discussion, they may request that the
issue be added to a future agenda.

* Community dialogue — The board may periodically schedule community forums that allow for dialogue, questions and
answers from the board or the district leadership team.

* Stay on time — Start and end on time. The chair may appoint a time-keeper.

* All voices will be heard — Every board member gets a chance to speak. Some topics warrant having each board member
speak in turn to ensure full representation.

* Reflection —To allow time for reflection, the chair and agenda steering committee will plan time for complex or
contentious issues to be discussed at more than one meeting before the board votes, except where a decision is urgent.

* Announcements in reports — Announcements from the administration will appear in the reports and not as discussion
items.

* Role of the board — At the end of each board meeting reflect on whether the board remained focused on its policy-making
and oversight role during the meeting, rather than operational details that are the responsibility of leadership team.

* Respect each other — Listen, allow others to be heard, share concerns, assume positive intentions, be present, and
celebrate successes.

AGENDA KEY
Agenda Section Examples Role/ Responsibility Description
Call to Order n/a Board Chair or Formal opening to meeting. Superintendent calls to order during annual
designee reorganization
Public Comment Opportunity for public comment on items not on the agenda. Board will adhere to
a strict 1.5 minute public comment time limit per person. Microphones will be
muted when time is up. If there is not enough time on the agenda for all
members of the public wishing to comment at the beginning of the meeting,
there is additional public comment at the end of the meeting.
Executive Session | Personnel Only for discussion of items covered in VSA §313.
Student Matter Formal actions not taken in Executive Session
Negotiations
Reports to the Superintendent/ Administration Both regular/recurring reports and one-time reports happen here. One-time reports
Board COLT are determined by the Board workplan or requested by the will of the Board.
Student Report Generally, reports invite clarifying questions but not formal discussion/action
Committee Finance Board Chair of the committee reports on substance of most recent committee meeting.
Reports Policy Generally, reports invite clarifying questions; any discussion or action items
Education Quality would be listed in the respective section of the agenda
Discussion Items Board with input Items on the agenda specifically for discussion of the Board. Chair can seek input
from administration from audience during discussions. Generally not intended for action (although
nothing prevents the Board from taking an action)
Action Items Personnel Board Items formally on the agenda for Board action. Discussion can occur after a
approvals motion is on the table
Consent Agenda Board Orders Board Designed for items that need proforma approval and/or are sufficiently routine.
Minutes Board acts on all items in the Consent agenda and does not discuss any item

unless it is pulled out during Agenda Adjustments







i<

B
i

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Superintendent/Central Office Leadership Team (COLT) Report -September 17, 2025

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to
contribute to their local and global communities.

Superintendent
Update on the Work of the WCLT

Over the past several months, the Washington Central Leadership Team (WCLT) has been
engaged in a focused cycle of planning, professional learning, and problem-solving designed to
strengthen leadership and support for our schools. The WCLT continues to ground its work in
our Strategic Plan and our shared core beliefs—that we nurture and inspire in all students the
passion, creativity, and power to contribute to their local and global communities.

This year’s workplan is organized around our three district priorities:

e Well-being and inclusivity — through attention to the community schools work, equity
audits, supervision practices, and student support systems.

e Challenging, empowering, and engaging every student — with a strong focus on
evidence-based instructional strategies, curriculum planning, and data-informed
professional learning such as Universal Design for Learning.

o Responsible leadership and transparent communication — by engaging our
administrators in coaching, aligning budget planning to our priorities, and preparing for
authentic community engagement.

Our WCLT meetings are intentionally structured to balance relationship building, leadership
learning, and timely decision-making. This ensures that principals and district leaders are not
only coordinating essential operations like safety planning, staffing, and budgeting, but also
investing in professional growth and collaborative leadership practices.

In short, the WCLT’s work reflects our commitment to a culture of continuous improvement,
shared leadership, and alignment with our Strategic Plan. By investing in this leadership team,
we are building the capacity to deliver on our promise to students, families, and staff, and living
out our core belief that our schools are stronger when we lead and learn together.

Finance & Human Resources

Elizabeth Guthrie, a U-32 alum class of 2021 and recent graduate of the University of Rhode
Island with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and a soon-to-be completed
Master’s in Business Administration was brought on board July 1st as the Accounts Payable
Accountant, replacing Shannon Knowles. Along with her formal education, Elizabeth brings
hands on experience in accounts payable having worked with National Life Group and Union
Mutual Fire Insurance Company as an intern. We are so excited to have Liz join the Team and
the contribution we are certain she will make!



i<

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Superintendent & COLT Report - August 20, 2025

Patricia Canada just joined the Central Office Team as the new Payroll Specialist. Patricia
replaced Penny Andrews and started in her position on August 25th. Patricia has held a variety of
business office positions over her career, with a focus on payroll, accounts payable, accounts
receivable and office management functions. Her previous employers have included The J Paul
Getty Museum in Los Angeles, Norwich University and Chestnut Place. Patricia’s first week
here was the on-site audit and the second week she worked the Labor Day Holiday to work on
processing the first paycheck of the school year. Patricia is proving early on to be very
committed to ensuring that all employees are paid timely and accurately, which is hugely
appreciated! Monthly Reflections

Several data collection reports are due to the AOE in August including the Statistical Report, the
Medicaid Reinvestment Report and the DC4 student data collection. The Annual Disclosure to
CMS on Creditable Coverage for Medicare is also due in August. Tim, Tom and I have worked
hard this summer to prepare the submissions for these reports, respond to questions from the
AOE, and make revisions as necessary. As always, thank you Team!

Since July 1, we have added 22 new contract employees, several of them in the last couple of
weeks in August. The HR Team (Heidi and Holly) work hard to meet with everyone to ensure
enrollment in all applicable benefits which include health insurance, dental insurance, dependent
care savings accounts, flexible spending accounts, life & disability insurance, retirement plans
through VSTRS, retirement plans through VMERS, 403b plans, gym memberships, union dues
and cash —in-lieu programs. Employee contracts are set up in the HR system and transferred to
the payroll system. Pay and benefits are set up in the payroll system for both employee and
employer portions, all of which need to be assigned proper account coding. This work needs to
be completed prior to processing the first paycheck on 9/5/25. Patricia Canada and Susanne
worked Labor Day, September 1st to ensure that all the new employees were set up and ready to
be paid before the 9/5 paycheck. Thank you to the payroll and HR Team for this very large lift
this summer — Heidi, Holly and Patricia!

Accountants from RHR Smith & Company were on site working on the annual audit for FY
2024 — 2025 from August 25th — August 28th. The first draft is anticipated mid-November. After
our review of the draft is complete, and any necessary changes are made, the auditors will
provide us with a final draft. This should allow for the Finance Committee and Board to receive
the report in January. RHR will attend the January Finance Committee meeting to give a
summary of the report and answer any questions. If the Committee is interested, RHR will
review it with the full Board as well



Washington Central Unified Union School District
Superintendent & COLT Report - August 20, 2025

Technology

David Rodgers joined us on July 23rd as the new Director of Technology with more than 20
years of experience leading IT in organizations, the last 14 in school districts in NY,
Pennsylvania, Maryland and Vermont. David’s most recent position was as the Director of
Technology for the Vermont Academy in Saxtons River. David successfully led projects for
network infrastructure and technology life-cycle programs all while emphasizing customer
service, collaboration, industry best practices and cost controls. David recognizes the need for
school districts to balance the need for growth with the need for sustainability and safety. David
spent his first month getting to know the Tech Team, Central Office staff and Administrators and
identifying the immediate and future needs of the District. We are confident that David will be an
awesome addition to the Tech Team!

Excitement and anticipation is in the air and our dedicated team of “technology elves” has been
busy preparing all our systems for the school year. If you see a new, Santa-looking character in
the halls, that's probably me — Dave Rodgers, your new Technology Director. I’'m very much
looking forward to working with you all! My goals for this year are to streamline processes and
to help you better use technology to make your jobs easier, freeing up time and making us all
more effective. I believe better communication and training are key to accomplishing these goals.
That's why we're starting this monthly newsletter, the WCUUSD Tech Brief. It will be filled with
District tech news, helpful tips, and training to make us all more productive. Also, watch for our
quick, one-shot briefs, “Did You Know?”” helpful hints.

Our Technology Team is proactively developing a District policy to guide the use of Al In the
meantime, we will provide our community with the guidance, tools, and guidelines necessary to
use these new resources responsibly and effectively.

We will soon be allowing Staff to access Google Gemini, Google's primary Al platform. Many of
you may already be familiar with NotebookLM, a tool that uses Al to summarize and synthesize
information; Gemini is the powerful engine that drives NotebookLM and other Google Al
services. Its features include a versatile assistant for tasks like planning and writing, as well as
image creation.

We selected Google's platform over competitors like ChatGPT largely due to Google’s
commitment to data privacy with their A.I. platforms. Google has stated it will not use data from
educational institutions to train its AI models, which is a critical protection for our student and
staff data. Stay tuned for our announcement and helpful hints to leverage these powerful tools.

I'm always open to new ideas, so please reach out if you have a problem that technology might
help solve!



Washington Central Unified Union School District
Superintendent & COLT Report - August 20, 2025

Curriculum Instruction/Assessment

The Curriculum Council recently had its first meeting of the 2025-2026 school year. The
purpose of Curriculum Council is to promote the coordination of our curriculum across our
district to support instruction and inform professional learning so that every student has access to
engaging, relevant, and culturally inclusive universal instruction and support.

We drafted our goal and work plan for 2025-2026 and spent some time analyzing our Spring
2025 district data.

Curriculum Council meets on the second and fourth Monday of the month after school. The
group is composed of teacher leaders and administrators from all of our schools. We strive for
representation across grade levels and roles. New this year—all of our principals are serving on
the Curriculum Council! We are thrilled to have teams of principals and teachers from each
school collaborating to move our important work forward, and we believe that this new
composition will create even more coherence in our school system from PreK-Graduation



Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

East Montpelier Calais

1130 Gallison Hill Road

Montpelier, VT 05602 Steven Dellinger-Pate
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent
Fax (802) 229-2761

Middlesex Worcester

Washington Central Pre-K Task Force — Update to the Board

Overview of Survey Responses

The Pre-K and Early Childcare Survey generated a wide range of input from families across Berlin,
Calais, East Montpelier, Middlesex, and Worcester. Parents shared both their immediate childcare needs
and broader hopes and concerns about Pre-K programming in our district.

Key Themes Identified

1. Strong Demand for Full-Day, Year-Round Care
o Families overwhelmingly indicated a need for full-day programming, with many also
requiring before- and after-school care.
o Summer care options are also highly valued, especially for working families.
o Half-day Pre-K offerings are seen as unworkable for many due to work schedules.

2. Program Philosophy & Quality
o Families expressed strong interest in outdoor/nature-based learning and play-based
approaches, with Montessori and Waldorf mentioned frequently.
o The quality of teaching and staff was the most consistently identified priority.

3. Barriers to Access
o Availability and waitlists are the most common barriers; families report long delays and
difficulty securing slots.
o Transportation challenges, especially when programs are not located in the family’s
town, are a significant obstacle.
o Families voiced concerns about inflexible hours that do not align with work demands.

4. Geographic Equity Concerns
o Families in Middlesex and Worcester, in particular, expressed frustration with limited or
no local Pre-K options.
o The closure of Pre-K at Rumney and Doty was cited multiple times as a hardship, with
families describing the difficulty of balancing multiple drop-offs and long commutes.

5. Information & Communication
o Families rely heavily on Front Porch Forum, word of mouth, and school newsletters for
information.
o Some parents expressed dissatisfaction with the communication about Pre-K program
changes, particularly around location availability.




6. Special Education & Support Services
o While some parents did not rank special education services as highly important, many
noted the value of integrated support (speech, OT, etc.) being available within Pre-K
settings.

7. Parent Hopes & Suggestions
o Expand Pre-K to include younger ages (some suggest as early as 6 weeks, using existing

school infrastructure).
o Offer more flexible scheduling models (e.g., two full days instead of four half-days).
o Ensure continuity of care so siblings can attend the same location.
o Strengthen communication about program decisions and provide transparent timelines.

Preferred Prek Program Philosophies

30r

257

0t

Number of Mentions

e 3 oo™
nnm@"- &Eﬁﬁt’ @b‘*nﬁ \M{L 3650(\ c@ﬁ w

i

Childcare Needs Reported by Families

[ S TV
= o

Number of Mentions
[
wn

10



MNumber of Mentions

Barriers to Prek Access

1"



W

i<

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Principal Report

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to
contribute to their local and global communities.

2025-2026 Priorities (Strategic Plan Goals):
-> Build and nurture a culture of well-being and inclusivity.
- Challenge, empower, and engage each student through evidence-based
instructional strategies and curriculum and varied educational opportunities.
- Foster and commit to responsible leadership that engages the community and
communicates transparently.

Update on Strategic Plan goals:
Well-being and inclusivity (HJC school and School Safety Team committee report out?)

Berlin: The BES staff has committed to making visible the work of well-being and inclusivity.
We have created a monthly schedule where we will have an All School Meeting once a month.
We will also continue our structure for Den Groups (multi-age groups of students), this is a
similar structure to TA at the Middle/High Level. These groups will serve as another point of
connection for all students in our care. Additionally, these groups can be leveraged as a
teaching and learning opportunity. Our focus for the first three months of school will be
community.

Calais: The Calais Safety Team has been finalizing all of our “rally points” and working to
communicate and plan with staff and students about those points and how we will use them in
the case of an emergency. Understanding the plan and expectations during an emergency will
ensure we are all doing what we need to do to ensure children and adult safety. Additionally,
our HIC committee is going to be starting work soon with a focus on student and parent
involvement.

Doty: Every year we start off the year focused on community building and learning routines.
This helps us develop a safe, predictable environment for students. We have had one all
school morning meeting and will have another one later this month. Starting in October, these
all school meetings will be led by the students themselves. I will be attending the Behavioral
Threat Assessment training and the Governor’s Safety conference and bringing that learning
back to the Doty school safety team.

EMES: Over inservice, our staff developed plans to roll out the Humanity and Justice
Coalition Vision Statement to our students Pre-K - Grade 6. Each classroom will have
age-appropriate language on what it means to provide a safe and supportive learning
environment for all individuals. I’m excited to see this work transpire over the coming
weeks/months.

Our head of maintenance and I will be attending the annual Governor’s Safety Convention
later this fall, and our behavior coach and I will participate in Behavior Threat Assessment
training, in hopes of continuing the vital work of keeping our school safe.

12



https://drive.google.com/file/d/1B1jYN6SWywDAp4NTs_4dKrWEbWgYgWsv/view?usp=drive_link

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Principal Report

Rumney: In response to the recent tragedy in Minnesota, our school safety team composed a
letter to families, which was included in our school newsletter. The letter outlines the
important work our team does to help maintain a safe learning environment, as well as key
procedures established by the district safety team.

We recognize that, given the frequency of school shootings in the United States, events like
these understandably heighten concern among families and staff. Each time such a tragedy
occurs, we take the opportunity to carefully review and refine our safety procedures, ensuring
we are prepared with thoughtful, effective responses for a wide range of scenarios.

U-32: We kicked off the school year with our Smart Start days to ensure that all students
connect to TA and re-connect to each other. This year we have started grade-wide community
meetings in which Tony Snow, Dean of Students will take the lead to have announcements,
appreciations, and activities to help build whole grade connections.

With our schedule change teachers are meeting in grade teams to be able to wrap around
students through a process of addressing concerns through Layer 1 and 2 instruction first.
Furthermore, a Coordinate Team of teachers is beginning to look at data to be able to address
barriers to access through a MLSS system. These practices and teams are deepening our MLSS
system in order to reach our goal of ensuring equitable outcomes for all learners.

Update on Strategic Plan goals:
Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment

Berlin: Our wonderful licensed teaching staff gathered for our first meeting of the year this
Wednesday. We will utilize a PD structure weekly on Wednesday mornings. This PD time will
provide time to connect, collaborate and learn together. This week we started to build our
professional learning community by identifying our professional superpowers. We will
leverage those superpowers to organize our work ahead and meet the goals that we have set
forth. It was amazing to sit in a room and feel the generative power of our teaching staff. [ am
thrilled that this structure is in place for our building for the year.

Calais: Professional Development embedded into our school day is something new for Calais,
but we have built a plan that we think will give our teachers more time to collaborate, prepare,
and be ready to educate our students. Every Monday our students have back-to-back Allied
Arts and two teams of teachers will work together with our licensed support staft (Special
Educator, Interventionists, Counselor/Behavior Specialist) to best meet the needs of students.
Every other week, District Instructional Coach Ellen Dorsey will be coming to Calais to work
with teachers about our MLSS process, instructional practices, and other professional
development needs. This is something new for Calais, and we will have challenges, but we are
all looking forward to new ways to build our educational model.

13



Washington Central Unified Union School District
Principal Report

Doty: In the first week of school, I met with our intervention team to review our list of “fast
start” students that we created in June. This meant that intervention services were able to
begin right after Labor Day. We have also made some changes to our master schedule so that
we are able to make flexible groupings across grades and classrooms so that student need is
driving the intervention schedule rather than the clock driving it. As our early assessment data
begins to come in, we are poised with our established team meeting protocols to identify needs
and implement needed supports or programming.

EMES: We kicked off our fourteenth year of professional learning communities (professional
development) this week. We’re in the beginning stages of setting goals for our work together
this year. Teachers had the opportunity to review the 2025-2026 data wall, including student
summaries written by teachers about each student last spring. Our fall assessments are
underway, and we are looking to review this data together later in September.

Although NESDEC predicted that EMES enrollment would decline from 181 students last year
to 160 K-6 students this year, we are starting the year strong with 175 K-6 students. We had an
influx of new students register last spring and over the summer.

Rumney: Teachers were excited to begin their assessments as a way to get to know this year’s
learners and their individual needs. We had several enrollments over the summer, so each class
used the first weeks of school to review routines and procedures.

U-32: Department facilitators are beginning to analyze the systems of assessment, grading, and
reporting across our school community. We shared the various ways in which departments are
assessing graduation proficiency and noticed some gaps in our system in terms of coherence.
As a result, this team is looking at examples from other schools to try to build a more coherent
and simple structure for ensuring students have met graduation proficiencies. We expect this
work to take the year and to be informed by input from families, students, and staff.

Update on Strategic Plan goals:
Community Engagement and Communication

Berlin: Our PTNA had its first official meeting on the 4th of September. They hosted a
beautiful Back to School Watermelon Social on the 26th of August. They also provided our
youngest Bobcats with school t-shirts. This small gesture welcomes our new Kindergarten
families and students to our school community. The PTNA will meet again on the first
Thursday in October at 6pm. Our community is growing and it’s amazing to see. The Playing
Fields event was wildly successful and it was incredible to see so many families in attendance.

Calais: The Calais Parent Advisory Team is up and running with the goal to increase
family/volunteer opportunities within our school. This year we hope to see more opportunities
for our parents and families become involved with our daily and afterschool activities. Events
such as school hikes, Buddy Lunch, family readers, etc.

14



Washington Central Unified Union School District
Principal Report

Doty: It was really exciting to see such good attendance from Doty families at the Playing
Fields event on September 9th! We are working with Friends of Doty to encourage families to
become volunteers and become active members of the school community. Our Open House
and potluck are on the 18th and we are looking forward to a large turnout!

EMES: We’re looking forward to several opportunities for our families and the community to
engage in our lives at school this fall. One big celebration was the Flynn Playing Fields event
that happened earlier this week. Initially, I had envisioned them coming to EMES to perform
for the East Montpelier community, and it quickly became evident that this was an opportunity
meant for all of Central Vermont. It was wonderful to see such great representation from all
five of our towns and beyond!

Rumney: We’re excited to share that Community Morning Meetings will be held on the last
Monday of each month. During these special gatherings, families are invited to join our
school-wide morning meeting, which follows the Responsive Classroom model. It’s a
meaningful opportunity for us to come together and strengthen our sense of community.

We also recognize that many families face challenges attending events during the school day.
To support broader participation, we make a conscious effort to offer events at a variety of
times and on different days throughout the year.

We were thrilled with the turnout at our recent Open House, which saw nearly 100% family
participation. A special thank-you to Steven for attending! My mom, a longtime teacher, even
remarked on how impressed she was that the superintendent took the time to be part of the
event!

U-32: Our Open House brought students and families together. We are also working to gather
some input from families to inform our two areas of focus: relevance and community and
connection this year. At the same time, our Community Schools work is aimed at bringing
people into the building more routinely for multiple purposes. The Community Learning
Series, Playing Fields, and the end of September Community Meal are all ways we are
working in collaboration with the whole district to ensure that our school feels open and
welcoming to all families and community members. Community happenings bulletin boards
are going up around campus, and we are excited to continue our work to build bridges in and
beyond our immediate community. Our partnership with Transcend will continue this fall to
support us in continuing to center student voices.

Celebrations & Upcoming Events

Berlin:
e September 24th— Open House 5:30-6:30
e QOctober 10th— District Wide Fall Field Day
e TBD— New Playground Opening

15



i<

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Principal Report

Calais: In partnership with the Friends of Calais we will be hosting our annual Back to School
BBQ and Open House on September 18th from 5:30 to 7:00pm. We will be hosting Open
House, a parent meeting, and an awesome community BBQ. We are also looking forward to
the district-wide Field Day on October 10th. And our big celebration is that we welcomed back
beloved Administrative Assistant Danielle Mackay at the start of the year. Danielle had her
first baby at the beginning of June and we ended the year without her and we (especially Mr.
Weiss!) are so glad she is back!

Doty:
e September 12 - We are having a Beach Day at Elmore, filled with games and getting to

know each other

e September 18 - Potluck and Open House, Open House is from 5:30 to 6 with the
potluck to follow

e September 25 - Community Dinner at U-32

EMES: We are gearing up for our annual all-school hike, which will take place on Friday,
September 26th. Students will spend the day hiking at one of the following locations: East
Montpelier Trails, Stowe Bike Path, Hubbard Park, Little River State Park, Mount Mansfield
Touring Center, Spruce, Hunger, and White Rock mountains, and the Top of Mount Mansfield.
We will also have our fall Open House on Wednesday, October 8th, and I would invite the
board to stop by a classroom or two on your way to the board meeting that evening! We’re
especially excited for our first ever district-wide Fall Field Day on October 10th, which will
take place at EMES and our recreation fields. I’ve been working with an EMES parent on
getting specially colored t-shirts for all WCUUSD students and staff for this day. It’s going to
be a spectacular fall day and hopefully one of many to come!

Rumney: Our first field trip will be an all school hike. Students will be able to pick from a
variety of options. At Elmore there are 3 trail options, from a one-mile flat loop to the Fire
Tower, which requires more hiking experience. We also have trails at Rumney for students to
explore.

The planning is underway for our district-wide Fall Field Day, which will take place at EMES.
Our head cook, Sabrina, will be helping with the BBQ at the event. This event is being
designed as a way for all students to connect with their district-wide peers. We may have
students continue with being pen pals throughout the year, and then come together in June for
another event (I’'m thinking of a beach day- but it’s still in the early planning stages).

U-32:
- It’s Homecoming Week! Spirit days, Friday Pep Rally, Friday Bon Fire and Football
game - bring family and friends - there are sports all weekend!
- September 24: Apple Crisp Making for the Community Meal
- September 17 and 24: Community Learning Series
- September 25: Community Meal

16



Washington Central Unified Union School District
Principal Report

Supervision & Evaluation Updates (EOS 2121.3; 2121.4)

Berlin: BES Staff and Teachers are working on their self-reflections to set intentional goals for
the school year ahead. As we get the meetings rolling I find myself feeling extra grateful for
the opportunity to connect and set individual goals for each staff member.

Calais: We are busy setting schedules and meetings to kick-off the year with a strong and
supportive supervision and evaluation process. Being intentional about this process and
focusing on growth and support are the key elements, in addition to being purposeful with
scheduling and time to reflect. There has been a lot of great work on our Supervision and
Evaluation at the district level and we are looking to push forward with a strong effort to make
this process work for our staff.

Doty: Using some of the tools from the summer’s work with Growth Coaching International,
I have led a staff in a self-reflection exercise to help staff begin to craft meaningful goals that
move their practice forward. We are intentionally embedding check-in times to our staff
meetings so that we are continually reviewing our progress toward our goals.

EMES: EMES teachers and ESP staff have already begun meeting with me to develop their
annual goals. It’s always an exciting time for us to start a fresh, new year and think about
what’s in store for all of us. Many teachers ended the year with goals in mind for this year,
some a continuation of great work that was started last year, and for others, new learning on
things such as Educlimber and our work around functional skills. EMES has 3 “new”
teachers, and 22 “performing” teachers. We have 16 ESP staff, 9 of whom are in their goal
setting year and 7 are in their evaluation year.

Rumney: This year Rumney has 3 teachers in the “new or new to endorsement” and 14
“performing teachers.” Additionally, we have 8 ESP positions (paraeducator, kitchen, and
custodial crew) that are in their goal setting stage. This year, all shared staff are being
supervised by a principal at a smaller school in order to help balance supervision
responsibilities. In September, all principals will conduct one informal observation of all new
or new to endorsement teachers.

U-32: In September we will be getting into classrooms to celebrate the great work professional
staff is doing to support young people. All licensed professional staff set goals that are aligned
to the school work plan and district strategic plan and, this year, performing staff will work
collaboratively to plan what evidence they want to use in their evaluations. We will then meet
mid-year and at the end of the year to reflect on that evidence and their goals.

17


https://education.vermont.gov/sites/aoe/files/documents/edu-state-board-rules-series-2000.pdf

Community Schools Board Report
September 11, 2025

On Tuesday, our communities gathered together to celebrate the beginning of the school year with
Playing Fields hosted by the Flynn Theater. The night was magical. Buses came from each of our
sending schools, families from across the region came with young children. High school and middle
school students stayed and joined in the festivities. Neighbors not currently linked into our school were
invited in. As a part of the work of community schools this year, we are creating spaces that unify and
celebrate our connections across the bounds of town and schools. We are one community.

This September, we began our multi-generational evening Community Learning Series. Two of the four
completed sessions have brought together over fifty community members to learn from local experts.
Class participants have been repairing their bikes, exploring the world of digital photography, making
beautiful wood carvings, sharpening chainsaws, playing volleyball, and creating fiber art. Over the next
two weeks, community members will learn to prune fruit trees, use dance for expression, read through
theatre scripts, and practice empowerment self defense, too. There are still some openings to attend
classes, please join us!

18


https://forms.gle/YYcxnSccxUCmAwCt5

The month will culminate with a free Community Meal on Thursday, September 25th at 5:30 at U-32. A

team of organizers is putting on a chili feast. Students from across this district will be working together to
make components of the meal. In partnership with Washington Central Friends of Education, we are
proudly sourcing ingredients from local farmers and producers. Please join us to celebrate a month of
growing connection in WCUUSD. Bring your neighbor, your family, and your friends to share a meal
together. Food brings people together, connections build community, and when we are connected, all of
us benefit.

We have intentionally created many opportunities in September to witness the growth and beauty of our
communities. Seeing our community be together is truly a joy. As the work of the Community Schools
grant continues, | am looking forward to my expanded time at Berlin Elementary in addition to U-32. This
will enable me to continue to build on our strengths, and grow the way we support each other. When we
build community, when we know each other, we collectively support our young people.

In Community,
Bec

Rebecca Dezan
Community Schools Coordinator, WCUUSD

19


https://forms.gle/cBXbC74yQSH69ugA6

Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

East Montpelicr Calais

YV 2

—~— -
- -

1130 Gallison Hill Road

Montpelier, VT 05602 Steven Dellinger-Pate
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent
Fax (802) 229-2761

U-32

\4

Middlesex Worcester

TO: WCUUSD School Board

FROM: Susanne Gann, WCUUSD Business Administrator
RE: Approve the FY 27 Budget Development Timeline
DATE: September 12,2025

Recommended Board Action: The Board approve the FY 27 Budget Development
Timeline as presented.

20



Washington Central Unified Union School District
Budget Development Timeline - Draft

FY 2026-2027

Month Washington Central Leadership Team (WCLT) WCUUSD Finance Committee WCUUSD Board
August WCLT Retreat 08/19 - Finance Comrnittee reviews and recommends Scope & 08/.20 - Board reviews and approves Scope & Budget for FY 27 Capital
Budget for FY 27 Capital Projects Projects
09/17 — Board approves the capital improvement projects for FY 27
09/17 - Board Budget Training; Board Budget Devell t
September 09/10 — WCLT receives proposed Budget Development Timeline 09/09 - Finance Committee reviews and recommends Budget Tiréeline oarc Budget Training; Board approves Budget Developmen
P! Development Timeline to Board . . o
09/17 - Board sets parameters and gives guidance for building the FY
27 Budget Draft #1
10/07 - WCLT reviews the strategic plan, enrollment, class size, Board
parameters, and baseline estimates
10/07 - WCLT di: FY 27 budget Is, food ice staffi
/ ) |scu5§es ucege goa. s, 100 5§rV|ce s ? ne, 10/14 - Finance Committee reviews and recommends FY 27 budget |10/15 — Board reviews FY 27 budget building assumptions; Annual
October community connections, preschool, special education staffing levels . . N .
. building assumptions Title | meeting
and grant-funded positions
10/21 — WCLT finalizes staffing levels for FY 27 Budget Draft #1
(working session)
10/21 - WCLT receives HR seniority list
11/04 — WCLT budget planning meeting to debrief October Finance X . X
11/19 - Board FY 27 Budget Draft #1 and d d
November Committee and Board discussions as necessary and adjust FY 27 11/11 - Finance Committee reviews FY 27 Budget Draft #1 / oa.r reviews udget ora and provices guicance
. . to Leadership Team
Budget Draft #1 prior to Board meeting
12/02 — WCLT budget planning meeting; prepare FY 27 Budget Draft 12/17 - Community Presentation and Board Budget Discussion of FY
December . 8! ,p . 6 , E; prep & 12/09 - Finance Committee discusses FY 27 Budget Draft #2 27 Budget Draft #2; TBD — Grand List and Common Level of Appraisal
#2 for Finance Committee discussion info
01/21 - Board reviews school board vacancies, warning language,
01/06 — WCLT final review and prep for Finance Committee X 5 . . / view . v I. warning 'anguag
January . . ) 01/13 - Finance Committee Budget Discussion annual report format; Community Presentation; Board approves FY
discussion on Final FY 27 Budget X
27 Final Budget
Februa 02/03 — WCLT review and prep for Finance Committee discussion on [02/10 — Finance Committee develops Board Communication and 02/18 — Board reviews and approves Board Communication and
i Board Communication and Outreach Plan Outreach Plan for Final FY 27 Budget Outreach Plan
03/2 — Informational Meeting at U-32 to present Final FY 27 Budget
No Meeting — WCLT prepares for any staff reductions or new hire
March ! g prep y uett Wt 03/2 — Informational Meeting at U-32 to present Final FY 27 Budget |03/3 — Town Meeting Day — FY 27 Budget Vote via Australian Ballot
needs; review of para and new staffing requests
03/11 - Board reorganization
April 04/07 - WCLT reviews openings and staffing changes 04/14 - Finance Committee reviews FY 26 Financial Report 04/15 — Board reviews FY 26 Financial Report
05/12 —Fi C itt flect: FY 27 Budget Devel t
May 05/05 - WCLT starts hiring for 26-27 School Year Précess fnance Lommittee retiects on ucget bevelopmen 05/20 — Board reflects on FY 27 Budget Development Process
COLT administrators complete CFP and IDEA B grant applications and
June submit end-of-year reimbursement requests; Leadership Team School Board Retreat

Retreat

21




Resolution of Washington Central Unified Union School District

The Washington Central Unified Union School District moves to join a supervisory union within a
larger governance region, to the extent practical, under the terms of H.454 (now Act 73) as approved
on June 16, 2025, by the Senate and the House of Representatives of the State of Vermont and signed
into law by the Governor on July 1. The Washington Central Unified Union School District will
submit our statement of intent to the new Redistricting Task Force and will work with the SU board to
reach out to contiguous school districts to explore combining into a larger supervisory union. Our
purpose is to optimize cost savings and efficiencies where possible while maintaining local democratic
engagement, oversight, and accountability in order to achieve excellent educational outcomes for our

communities’ children and youth at a cost Vermonters can afford.

22



LYNN, LYNN, BLACKMAN
& MANTITSKY, P.C.

April 27, 2017

Brian G. Ricca, Superintendent of Schools
Montpelier School District

5 High School Dr, Unit 1

Montpelier, VT 05602

Laurie Gossens, Superintendent of Schools
Washington South Supervisory Union

37 Cross St, Until 1

Northfield, VT 05663

Re: Proposed Montpelier-Roxbury Unified Union School District Board Membership
Dear Brian and Laurie:

1 am writing to confirm that the current proposal for the pertaining to Board membership of the
proposed Montpelier-Roxbury Unified Union School District meets the requirements of the
Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution and 16 VSA §796(b)(9).

The Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment requires equal voting strength, and
protects against dilution of the right to vote by disproportionate representation. This guarantee
extends to the election of local school official who exercise general governmental powers.
Hadley v. Junior Coll. Dist., 397 U.S. 50, 53 (1970). Mathematical precision, however, is not
necessary; rather “the overriding objective must be substantial equality of population among the
various districts.” Reynolds v. Sims, 377 U.S. 533, 569, 579 (1964). The Supreme Court has
held that generally, an apportionment plan with a maximum population deviation under 10% is
considered a minor deviation. Brown v. Thomson, 462 U.S. 835, 842 (1983). A plan with larger
disparities, however, remains Constitutional if there is a rational basis for the larger deviation.
Reynolds, 377 U.S. at 579.

Article 7 of the Articles of Agreement identify a proportional representation model for the new
board. It lays out the initial Board membership of seven members with two (2) votes each from
Montpelier and two members with one (1) vote each from Roxbury. With a population for the
Unified Union School District of 8546 residents: Montpelier has 92% of the population and
board representation equal to 87.5%. Roxbury has 8% of the population and board
representation equal to 12.5%. The apportionment plans set forth in Article include a maximum
deviation of no more than four and a half (4.5%) percent. This falls well within the parameters
of a minor deviation. The Articles of Agreement further ensure compliance by tying future
composition and recalculation to the Federal Census on decennial basis.

76 St. Paul Street = Suite 400 « Burlington, VT 05401 « 802.860.1500 « FAX 802.860.1580

27

23



Superintendents Brian Ricca & Laurie Gossens
April 27, 2017
Page 2

Under the requirements of 16 VSA § 706(b)(9), the board must have at least one representative
from each community. The proposal has at least two members for cach community. This
requirement is thus satisfied. Further, the statute requires that the board have no more than 18
members. With the proposed nine member board this element is also met.

Based on our analysis, the proposed Articles of Agreement meet the requirements of the Equal
Protection Clause of the United States Constitution and 16 VSA §796(b)(9).

Sincerely,

LYNN, LYNN, BLACKMAN & MANITSKY, P.C.

%Hﬂ
Pietro ynn, Esq.
plynn@]lynnlawvt,com

cc:  Stephen Dale, Act 46 Study Committee Consultant
Donna Russo-Savage, Vermont Agency of Education

24



Implications of Keeping Current WCUUSD Structure for Democratic Representation

Because the WCUUSD board is being asked to consider requesting that we maintain as much of our
current structure as possibly in the interest of promoting democratic engagement, it is important to
understand the implications of continuing this system for representational fairness.

With an equal number of representatives from each WCUUSD town, the number of school board
members varies from 1 per every 321 residents to 1 per every 950, with a district average of 1 per every
657. Berlin and East Montpelier collectively have 55% of the population but only 40% of the board seats,
while Worcester has just under 10% of the population and 20% of the seats.

In 2017 attorney Pietro Lynn provided a letter opining on the legality of the representation plan for the
proposed Montpelier-Roxbury School District, which included the following explanation of the equal
protection requirements for representation.

The Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment requires equal voting strength, and protects
against dilution of the right to vote by disproportionate representation. This guarantee extends to the
election of local school official who exercise general governmental powers. Hadley v. Junior Coll. Dist., 397
U.S. 50, 53 (1970). Mathematical precision, however, is not necessary; rather “the overriding objective
must be substantial equality of population among the various districts.” Reynolds v. Sims, 377 U.S. 533,
569, 579 (1964). The Supreme Court has held that generally, an apportionment plan with a maximum
population deviation under 10% is considered a minor deviation. Brown v. Thomson, 462 U.S. 835, 842
(1983). A plan with larger disparities, however, remains Constitutional if there is a rational basis for the
larger deviation. Reynolds, 377 U.S. at 579.

The court also held in Reynolds v. Sims that legislators represent people, not geographic regions, and
that superficial resemblance between state or local representation schemes and the Federal Congress
are not a basis for justifying to local plan.

Within Washington Central, only Middlesex has a deviation in population per representative of less than
10% from the district average, and deviations run as high as 45% more residents per representative in
Berlin and 51% fewer residents per representative in Worcester than the district average. Note that
having 50% more residents per representative means that this population has 2/3 the average
representation, while 50% fewer residents per representative means that the population has twice the
average representation. This means that a Worcester resident has 2.96 times the representation that a
Berlin resident has when both towns’ board memberships are full.

Deviations from District Avg Representation Town-to-Town Representation Differences
) Pop Per Board Deviation Board Members per | Ratio of board members per 1,000 population for
Town Population )
Member* from Average 1,000 population town at left to town at bottom
Worcester 964 321.33 -51.1% Worcester 3.11 2.96 2.70 1.85 1.72 1
Calais 1,661 553.67 -15.7% Calais 1.81 1.72 1.56 1.07 1 0.58
Middlesex 1,779 593 -9.7% Middlesex 1.69 1.60 1.46 1 0.93 0.54
East Montpelier 2,598 866 31.9% East Montpelier 1.15 1.10 1 0.68 0.64 0.37
Berlin 2,849 949.67 44.6% Berlin 1.05 1 0.91 0.62 0.58 0.34
Total 9,851 656.73 Average 1.52 Berlin East Middlesex Calais  Worcester
Montpelier

* Population per board member is used here because this is the measure considered by the Supreme Courtin Brown v. Thomson. Board Members per 1,000
population provides a more intuitive representation of the representational differences, and the resulting ratios are the same under either measure.

25



It is notable that a number of other models are available and in use in nearby school districts, and
particularly that a representation system with 11 board members in which each town would have at
least one representative and the greatest deviation from the district average population per board
member would be 7.6%, and with the most represented town having only 1.16 times the representation
as the least represented one. The board could also choose to propose making all members at-large or
weighting the votes of board members by population.

While Washington Central remains technically compliant with these requirements because all citizens
can vote for all school board members, this requires that all board members fully represent all towns.
Some of the board’s behaviors call these commitments into question, however:

e The board consistently requires representation from each town for membership on the steering
committee and for configuration work, indicating that the board considers these members to be
representatives of their towns (and that a member from another town could not fill that role).

e Both members of the public and of the board have lobbied the chair to move quickly to fill
empty seats on the board so that towns could have full representation.

e Members of the public routinely reach out to the representatives from their towns, indicating a
belief that those members are their representatives. Board members hear more from residents
of their own towns than from other towns due to their proximity to these voters.

When town-level politics rule certain positions out of bounds for a candidate from that town, residents
of other towns who wish to vote for a candidate who supports that position have no viable means of
doing so.! While it is common for voters to be unable to find their perfect candidate in any election, in
almost all other cases a voter who feels truly unrepresented has the option of running for office
themselves, while this district denies them that outlet. Voters who do not have a meaningful choice for
structural reasons should not be considered to be meaningfully represented when they make the only
choices available to them.

This board is also not required to consider only the question of whether it meets the law in a technical
way — it may also consider whether it meets the spirit of the law. We are being asked to decide a
political question here, and that requires not just attention to whether the outcome is legal, but also to
whether it is just.

1t is worth noting the inadequacy of being able to write in a candidate as an alternative to placing a candidate on
the ballot. Write-in campaigns are rarely successful at overcoming the inertia of a candidate who is listed on the
ballot. Two recent examples spring to mind:

1. In 2022 the candidate for sheriff in Franklin County was credibly accused of assaulting a prisoner in his
custody. Despite both the Democratic and Republican parties both coalescing around and promoting an
alternative write-in candidate, the candidate on the ballot prevailed.

2. Alsoin 2022 in East Montpelier, a paperwork error meant that Edie Murray was placed on the ballot for
Justice of the Peace instead of Edie Miller. Edie Murray does not exist, while Edie Miller is well known in
town, having held numerous elected and community building positions over the years. Despite numerous
announcements from the town clerk that there was an incorrect name on the ballot and votes for that
person would not be counted and a write-in campaign for the real candidate, the non-existent candidate
still received more votes by a margin of 548-334.

26



Washington Central Unified Union School District
Policy Review Cycle, 2025-2026 (A2 Procedures)

BOARD POLICY DEVELOPMENT & MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES

The development and maintenance of school district policies is the central job of school
boards. The Vermont statute entitled “Powers of School Boards” lists over twenty-five
specific duties delegated to local boards by the General Assembly. The very first
responsibility on the list is the duty to “Determine the educational policies of the school
district...” (VT School Boards Association Resource Directory, 2022)

One of the standing committees of the Boards of WCUUSD is the Policy Committee. The board selects
representatives to the Committee. In addition, three administrators (two local building administrators
and one central office administrator) are on the committee. The committee meets once per month to
review policies and each year a work plan is established outlining which policies will be reviewed or
developed during the school year. Policies are identified for review or development three ways:

1. Mandatory review/development (State and federal law may require the adoption of new
policies or revision of existing board policies and often have a deadline for doing so.)

2. Selected review/development (Board or Policy Committee requests a review ahead of the
regular review cycle or identifies a need for a new policy that does not yet exist. The Policy
Committee establishes a process for considering requests for policy review that come from the
public.)

3. As part of the policy review cycle (Our goal is that all policies are reviewed no less than every
five years and policies are reviewed in sequential order.)

As stated in the VSBA reference above, policy is different than procedures. Except when required by law,
the Policy Committee generally does not include procedures in policy. Policy implementation and
procedure development is the role of the administration. Sometimes guidelines are added to policy to
provide guidance to the administration as it develops procedures and implements policy.

All board policies, by state law, must be warned before the board can adopt a new policy, revise and/or
repeal an existing policy. This process helps all of the boards to efficiently address their policy
governance role. We are continually making improvements to the system.

Updated,7/16/2025
27


https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/A2%20Policies%20Procedures%20WCUUSD%201.15.20.pdf
https://www.vtvsba.org/ewtk-policy

Washington Central Unified Union School District
e Policy Review Cycle, 2025-2026 (A2 Procedures)

Goal #1: Educational and Academic Outcomes
Month Goal #2: Broadening Communication with the Community
Goal #3: Long Term Planning

Policy Review Cycle
(sequential order by adoption
date - beginning from 2019)

Mandatory Review/ Selected
Development Review/Development

August

DT Work Plan development

Act 29: Behavioral Threat
Assessment

D4: Title | Comparability

CA47: Student Exchanges

C34: Use of Restraint &
Seclusion (VSBA
updated model policy to
C70in 2022)

E46: Flag Raising (request
from students to modify
to every 3 years for a
renewal request)

October 1 Affirm work plan

C20: Student Conduct and
Discipline (discussed in
22-23 & committee
request admin feedback;
VSBA updated in 2022 to
Cl15)

C8 Pupil Privacy (Revised
11/4/24 VSBA)

C45: Bus discipline

November 5 Al (Artificial Intelligence) Policy Sample:

Policy https://d2f1dfnoetcO3v.cl
B32: Educator Supervision oudfront.net/Files/Al-Poli

and Evaluation
Animals in Schools Policy cy-Draft_6-18-25.pdf

C50: Comprehensive Sexual
Health Services

Updated,7/16/2025
28


https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/A2%20Policies%20Procedures%20WCUUSD%201.15.20.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/domain/291/policies/C47%20Student_Exchanges%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/C34%20Use_Restraint_Seclusion%20WCUUSD.doc
https://b44bfd73-9878-43fe-a010-5ad36658c1f7.usrfiles.com/ugd/b44bfd_e40b71ac9684429ba0f94f74b798db44.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1746812125/wcsu32org/nevfldurmgav5of5i4dt/F46FlagRaising.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/domain/291/policies/C20%20Student_Conduct_Discipline%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://b44bfd73-9878-43fe-a010-5ad36658c1f7.usrfiles.com/ugd/b44bfd_d416d7b603e9467fa8737b254626260c.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1682011662/wcsu32org/batv14xs5cb6mo36u0ub/C8PupilPrivacyRights.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/domain/291/policies/C45%20Bus_Discipline%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/C50%20Comprehensive%20Sexual%20Health%20Services%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://d2f1dfnoetc03v.cloudfront.net/Files/AI-Policy-Draft_6-18-25.pdf
https://d2f1dfnoetc03v.cloudfront.net/Files/AI-Policy-Draft_6-18-25.pdf
https://d2f1dfnoetc03v.cloudfront.net/Files/AI-Policy-Draft_6-18-25.pdf

HEH
® )

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Policy Review Cycle, 2025-2026 (A2 Procedures)

December 3

C9 Nutrition & Wellness (
AOE has issued a new
model policy and replaces
the VSBA policy)
Triennial Policy Review

January 7

D1: Proficiency-Based
Graduation Requirements
C22: Student Athletics, clubs
and activities

February 4

D2: Grade Advancement:
Retention, Promotion
and Acceleration of
Students

E46: Memorials

April 1

C48: Foreign Exchange
Students

May 6

June 3

Policies to determine next steps
EV Charger Policy

Animals in Schools

VSBA Recommended Policies

e (22 Student Athletics, Clubs and Activities

C25 Admission of Non-Resident Tuition Students
D20 Curriculum Development
D21 Education Support Systems
D23 Selection of Instructional Materials

E21 Distribution of non-school sponsored literature in schools
F23 Capitalization of assets

e F27 Communicable Disease Mitigation for Students and Staff
B2, B3, B4, B5, B7
Cl,C2,C4,Cs5,C7,CI11,C13,Cl14

D3, D5, D6

El

Updated,7/16/2025


https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/A2%20Policies%20Procedures%20WCUUSD%201.15.20.pdf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1RewmyY5tk5YEfyqD-kKC279NNyX-ckRr/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=110470054633838639100&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/domain/291/policies/D1%20Proficiency_Based_Grad_Requirements%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/D2%20Grad_Adv_Retention_Promotion_Acceleration_Students%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/domain/291/policies/E46%20Memorials%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/domain/291/policies/C48%20Foreign_Exchange_Students%20WCUUSD.pdf

i<

Washington Central Unified Union School District
Policy Review Cycle, 2025-2026 (A2 Procedures)

F1

Policies Addressed in 25-26
D4: Title I Comparability (reviewed and current policy is retained)

Policies Approved/Revised 24-25
D24 Creating Learning Environments to Engage in Civil Discourse

F20: Fiscal Management & General Fiscal Accountability (VSBA Recommended policy)
F45: Fundraising

B41: Prevention of Conflict of Interest in Procurement

B30 Staffing and Job Descriptions

Rescinded: C30 Student Medication; Replaced by C71 Possession and Administration of
Emergency and Non-emergency Medications

C51: Policy of Ensure Safety & Resources for Families Impacted by Immigration Enforcement
A31: Board Member Education

A32: Board Goal Setting & Evaluation

A34: Board Relations with School Personnel

A24: Board Supervision Relationship

Policies Approved/Revised 23-24

F3 Fire and Emergency Preparedness (8.23.23)

F4 Access Control and Visitor Management (8.23.23)

B20 Personnel Recruitment, Selection, Appointment and Background Checks (January)
C6 Home Study Students (November)

C3 Transportation ( November)

D22 Instructional & Library Materials Selection ( January)

A2 Policies and Procedures ( January)

A20 Board Meetings, Agenda Preparation and Distribution ( January)
A22 Notice of Non- Discrimination ( January)

F26 Security Cameras ( January)

Policies Discussed by the Committee - No Actions
School Choice - Board opted not to create a policy

D4-Discussed in February by committee, agreed to send to full board , has not been reviewed by
the full board due to budget

Mandatory Review/Newly Revised
E21 Distribution of Non-School Sponsored Literature in Schools ( 6/5/24 by VSBA) WCUUSD

Does not currently have a policy E21

Policies Removed by VSBA that we have
B31 Educator Supervision and Evaluation ( 1/12/24)

B30 Staffing and Job Descriptions (10/2/23)

Updated,7/16/2025
30


https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/A2%20Policies%20Procedures%20WCUUSD%201.15.20.pdf
https://www.wcuusd.org/fs/resource-manager/view/c1f6df05-8a1f-4084-87f4-279b13b5b646
https://www.vtvsba.org/_files/ugd/b44bfd_cf64de6a19b24a47917bc7c3afe8751e.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/domain/291/policies/F45%20Fundraising_Sales_to_Students_on_School_Property%20WCUUSD.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1748012273/wcsu32org/w2ktfjxjg60qaaxr82gi/ProcurementConflictofInterestPolicy.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1682011651/wcsu32org/i32y9gkwuh7b9baggy83/B30StaffingandJobDescriptionsWCUUSD420.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1682011669/wcsu32org/nxaly1vqtm8qxkjaiez8/C30StudentMedicationWCUUSD320.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1742559197/wcsu32org/zk01im4ocehbww8s3vvk/C71EmergencyMedication31925.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1740418582/wcsu32org/wnxaa9pkxteaglgmknrj/C51SanctuarySchool.pdf
https://www.wcsu32.org/cms/lib/VT02224924/Centricity/Domain/148/A31%20Board%20Member%20Education%20WCUUSD%202.5.20.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1748012247/wcsu32org/q6xqy7wmzq4grclfzuy0/A32BoardGoalSettingEvaluation.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1748012255/wcsu32org/xlgbszim5zn8r1qaryt7/A34BoardRelationswithSchoolPersonnelWCUUSD1920.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1748012239/wcsu32org/x7dn3bgdnggt4eq5znp7/A24BoardSuperintendentRelationshipcleanversion5225.pdf

Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

1130 Gallison Hill Road

Montpelier, VT 05602 Steven Dellinger-Pate o
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent ’
Fax (802) 229-2761

MEMO

DATE: September 10, 2025
TO: Washington Central Unified Union School District Board
FROM: Steering Committee

The Steering Committee reviewed our norms today. Please see the updated norms below. We are keeping
the original message from our board chair on what our board norms are here:

Our Board norms are grounded in our shared values, beliefs, and culture. They are not rules meant to limit
us, but aspirations that guide how we work together as leaders, modeling for our students, staff, and
community the respectful and collaborative behaviors we hope to see in them. By committing to these
norms, we create the conditions for trust, civility, and thoughtful decision-making, ensuring that our work
reflects the best of who we are and what we want to accomplish together.

This document reflects the collective wisdom of our recent retreat, the last two meetings, and the steering
committee meeting. It captures not only the practices that help us function effectively as a Board, but also
the spirit of cooperation and mutual respect that we strive to uphold. What you see in green are the
recommended norms by the steering committee, and the small edits are underlined. I want to remind us,
as we consider any additions, that our norms are meant to inspire a positive culture, where all voices are
valued, preparation and engagement are expected, and our roles are understood and honored. They are
aspirational, and we are humans. We will pledge to hold each other accountable and honor each other’s
individuality. These norms will serve us as a reminder that the way we do our work matters just as much
as the outcomes we achieve. We want to get this work done and approved at our meeting on September
17th.

31



WCUUSD Board Norms - Draft

e Public input —Notify the community about public forums and opportunities for public comment at
board meetings, and the ability to always submit written input.

e Community involvement during regular meetings of the board — Every meeting will include at least
one opportunity for public comment. Public comment is an opportunity for board members to listen.
and-ask-etarifping-questions. If a board member feels a concern raised in public comment warrants
further board discussion, they may request that the steering committee discuss and decide_how the
issue should be added to a future agenda.

o Community dialogue — The board mey will periodically schedule community forums that allow for
dialogue, questions and answers from the board or the district leadership team.

e Stay on time — Start and end on time. The chair may appoint a time-keeper.

e Inclusive time for thoughtful decisions - The chair and agenda steering committee will plan time
for complex or contentious issues to be discussed at more than one meeting before the board votes,
except where a decision is urgent.

e  Prepare for meetings and Receive materials in advance-Board members come prepared, having
reviewed the agenda and materials in advance

e Announcements in reports — Announcements from the administration will appear in the reports and
not as discussion items.

e Respect each other — Listen, allow others to be heard, share concerns, assume positive intentions,
be present, focus on shared solutions and celebrate successes.

o All voices will be heard- Every board member gets a chance to speak. Some topics warrant having
each board member speak in turn to ensure full representation. Board members will address the
topics up for debate and not the person.

o Rotleoftheboard— Governance Reflection - At the end of each board meeting, reflect on whether

the board adhered to agreed protocols processes. and poltczes rema—medfoeufred—on—ﬁﬁoolbey

e Reflection —At the end of each board meetlng, board members wzll be allowed tlme to share their
general reﬂectlons on the meetmg | ; A e

32



Required

WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED
UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY: F5
9.17.25
Board of Directors’ Policy WARNED:
BEHAVIORAL THREAT
ASSESSMENT TEAMS ADOPTED:
EFFECTIVE:

Statement of Policy

The Washington Central Unified Union School District is committed to providing a safe and secure learning
environment for students and staff. This policy establishes a school behavioral threat assessment (BTA) and
management program to conduct a fact-based, systematic process designed to gather information about, assess
and manage behavior or communication that raises a concern that a person or situation may pose a threat of
severe and significant targeted violence against the school community.

Nothing in this policy precludes Washington Central Unified Union School District personnel from acting
immediately to address an imminent threat, including immediately removing a student from school, subject to
subsequent due process procedures, when the student poses an immediate threat to themself, others, property,
or the educational environment.

The threat assessment process is distinct from and does not supplant the Washington Central Unified Union
School District student conduct and discipline policy. A behavioral threat assessment will not impose
suspension or expulsion, including emergency suspension, solely for investigating student conduct or
conducting a threat assessment. Any action that could result in removal of a student from the student’s school
environment pending or after a threat assessment will only be carried out in accordance with 16 V.S.A. § 1162,
State Board of Education Rule 4300, and federal and state law applicable to students with disabilities.
Behavioral threat assessment teams will operate in a manner that avoids bias, discrimination, and
disproportionate impact on students in historically marginalized communities.

Threat assessment is not intended to refer students to the criminal justice system, but to facilitate the provision
of resources and support to a student and to mitigate potential acts of violence. Law enforcement referral is not
appropriate in the case of student behavior that is a violation of the school conduct code but that is not also a
crime. This policy also exists to ensure compliance with 16 VSA § 1485.

Administrative Responsibilities

The superintendent or designee will establish procedures to:

1) Govern the functions of the Behavioral Threat Assessment Team. At minimum, the procedures will be
consistent with the methodologies provided in the model BTA procedures and Best Practices provided by the
Agency of Education;

2) Ensure an individual’s behavior rather than an individual’s demographic or personal characteristics will
serve as the basis for a behavioral threat assessment;

3) Establish a mechanism which allows for students, staff and others to report threatening and troubling
behavior to the behavioral threat assessment team;

33



4) Provide for:
a. involvement of law enforcement (outside of the inclusion of a School or District Resource Officer),
that aligns with the model procedures issued by the Agency of Education, or
b. referral to law enforcement in the case of imminent danger to individuals or the school community
when the conduct constitutes a crime.

5) Ensure that each threat assessment team member, whether a teacher, counselor, school administrator, other
school staff, contractor, consultant, or other individual, functions as a “school official with a legitimate
educational interest” in educational records controlled and maintained by the Washington Central Unified
Union School District as specified by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

6) Provide for the collection and submission of data related to the behavioral threat assessment program to the
Agency of Education as required by 16 VSA § 1485(e).

7) Ensure behavioral threat assessment team members receive training at least annually in best practices of
conducting behavioral threat assessments, as well as bias training.

VSBA Review May 23, 2025
Date

Date Warned

Date Adopted

Legal References i 16 VSA § 1485 Behavioral Threat Assessment Teams

VT State Board of Education Rule 4313.6 Referral to and Action by Law Enforcement and Judicial
Authorities

Vermont State Board of Education Rule 4311 (Procedures for Disciplinary Action)

VT AOE DQS 112.2.3 Behavior Threat Protocols

20 U.S.C. § 1415 (Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA))

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794

Cross References i Student Conduct and Discipline

District Equity Policy

Education Records

Firearms

Search and Seizure of Students by School Personnel
Use of Restraint and Seclusion

Security Cameras

DISCLAIMER: This model policy has been prepared by the Vermont School Boards Association for the sole
and exclusive use of VSBA members, as a resource to assist member school boards with their policy
development. School Districts should consult with legal counsel and revise model policies to address local
facts and circumstances prior to adoption, unless the model policy states otherwise. VSBA continually makes
revisions based on school districts' needs and local, state and federal laws, regulations and court decisions,
and other relevant education activity.

34



Recommended

WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED

UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY: C47
WARNED: 6.1.19

Board of Directors’ Policy ADOPTED: 6.26.19

STUDENT EXCHANGES EFFECTIVE: 7.1.19

Exchanges of students between school districts can provide educational and personal benefits for
the students involved. In many cases, such exchanges also benefit the school as a whole, as the
participants make valuable contributions to the schools they attend.

In the acceptance of foreign or domestic exchange students, Washington Central Unified Union
School District students and staff find unique opportunities to learn and understand people and
cultures different from their own.

WCUUSD encourages such exchange programs and similarly encourages the providing of
programs which allow WCUUSD students an opportunity to travel, live, and study in other
cultural settings.

PROCEDURES

Area Schools Student Exchanges

The prineipal-superintendent is authorized to approve one-for-one exchanges of WCUUSD
resident students with students who reside in other school districts providing that the prineipat
superintendent of the non-resident’s school has similarly approved the proposed exchange. In
approving such proposed exchanges, the prineipal-superintendent, or designee shall follow the
procedures as listed below:

1. Only one-for-one exchanges may be made. For every non-resident student accepted under
this program a resident student must be accepted at the school that the non-resident students
would have otherwise attended.

2. An application for an exchange must be made in writing to the Principal of the receiving
school with a copy to the Principal of the sending school.

3. Applications must be made annually. Number of years in the program will be considered in
determining priority for renewal. Renewal requests must be received on or before May 1%
prior to the year of the requested attendance. Renewal applications received after May 1% will
be treated on the same basis as new requests.

4. All new requests will be considered according to the order in which they are received.

35



5. Special education students will be considered only if the proposed exchange is approved by
the student’s IEP team and the receiving school determines that the student’s special needs
can be met without added burden of cost or resources to the school system.

6. Students will not be accepted who have a history of behavior or attendance problems unless
it is mutually agreed by the two prinetpals-superintendents that the change in schools shows
genuine promise of correcting the problem(s).

7. Transportation of the student will be the sole responsibility of the parent or guardian.

8. Students accepted under this exchange program will be entered on the school register as
tuition non-resident students (for whom) tuition payment is waived by the Board) thereby
making them eligible to represent WCUUSD on all activities under the sponsorship of the
Vermont Headmaster’s Principal’s Association.

9. No students will be approved for exchange after September39 the first day of school each
year unless the circumstances are extenuating and beyond the control of the student.

10. Once a student has been notified of acceptance, his/her place is assured for the forthcoming
school year.

Foreign and Domestic Exchange Programs

Application from a student applying for admission to WCUUSD under the sponsorship of an
approved foreign or domestic exchange program will be screened by the principal to determine
whether all of the below listed guidelines have been met and/or agreed to by all parties. Upon
completion of said screening, the principal shall make a recommendation to the superintendent
regarding the acceptance of the student. The superintendent shall in turn inform the Board of
accepted students.

1. The student must be sponsored by a recognized and approved (as per the Vermont
Headmaster’s Association) agency or organization whose prime purpose is to provide pupil
exchange programs.

2. The student must have approved arrangements to reside with a family living within the
school district.

3. The student must demonstrate a level or proficiency in written and spoken English sufficient
to enable him/her to benefit from the academic program of the school without undue
hardship to the instructors and other students.

4. The student will not be granted a U-32 high School diploma although the student, if a

senior, will be allowed to participate in the graduation exercises and may be granted an
honorary diploma at the discretion of the principal.

36



5. The students will not receive an official transcript or be granted any academic credit from a
WCUUSD school, although, at the student’s request the school will supply the student with
a statement indicating the student’s program of study and level of achievement. The
awarding of actual academic credit for work completed at WCUUSD school will be solely
at the discretion of the student’s home school.

6. The student will not be enrolled in driver’s education.

Exception

Students who do not meet all of the stated conditions, but who are worthy of special
consideration in the judgment of the prinetpal-superintendent, may be granted admission by the
Board upon the recommendation of the prineipal-superintendent.

37



Recommended

WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED 70
UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY:
9.17.25
Board of Directors’ Policy WARNED:
USE OF RESTRAINT AND SECLUSION ADOPTED:
EFFECTIVE:

Section 1. Statement of Purpose

It is the policy of the Washington Central Unified Union School District that students not be subjected to
inappropriate restraint or seclusion as defined by Vermont State Board of Education Rule 4500. It is the
district’s intent to create and maintain a positive and safe learning environment, and promote positive
behavioral interventions and supports in district schools. This policy is further intended to assist in creating a
common understanding within the district/supervisory union of appropriate interventions by district staff.

Section 2. Definitions
The following terms are defined in State Board Rule 4500.3 and shall apply to this policy.
2.1 Behavioral Intervention Plan
2.2 Chemical Restraint
2.3 Functional Behavioral Assessment
2.4 Mechanical Restraint
2.5 Parent
2.6 Physical Escort
2.7 Physical Restraint
2.8 Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports
2.9 Prone Physical Restraint
2.10 School
2.11 School Personnel
2.12 Seclusion
2.13 Substantial Risk
2.14 Supine Physical Restraint
2.15 Student

Section 3. Policy

The superintendent or designee shall develop administrative procedures to ensure district/ supervisory union
compliance with the requirements of Vermont State Board of Education Rule 4500. The administrative
procedures shall include at least the following components:

1. Prohibitions against the imposition on students of mechanical or chemical restraints by school personnel
and contract service providers.

2. Prohibitions against the imposition on students of physical restraint in circumstances designated as
impermissible by State Board of Education rules.

38



3. Restrictions on the use of physical restraint and seclusion to circumstances allowed by State Board of
Education rules, including provisions that allow the inclusion of restraint or seclusion as part of a student’s
individual safety plan only when that plan meets the conditions set forth in State Board of Education rules,
and provisions that require the termination of restraint or seclusion, and the monitoring of students
subjected to restraint or seclusion, as established by State Board of Education rules.

4. Procedures to ensure that only school personnel or contract service providers who are trained in the use of
restraint and seclusion are authorized to impose restraint or seclusion unless, due to the unforeseeable
nature of the danger of a particular circumstance, trained personnel are not immediately available.

5. Processes to ensure that impositions of restraint or seclusion are reported to school administrators, parents,
superintendents and the Secretary of the Vermont Agency of Education under circumstances and within the
time limitations required by State Board of Education rules.

6. Processes to ensure that each school in the district/supervisory union maintains written records of each use
of restraint and seclusion in accordance with the requirements of State Board of Education rules.

7. Procedures to ensure that each school in the district/supervisory union implements follow-up procedures
that are consistent with the requirements of State Board of Education rules.

8. Annual notification procedures to ensure that each school in the district/supervisory union informs school
personnel and parents of students enrolled in the school of the policies and procedures pertaining to the use
of physical restraint and seclusion, and the intent of the school to emphasize the use of positive behavioral
interventions as well as supports and its intention to avoid the use of physical restraint or seclusion to
address targeted student behavior.

9. Processes for the filing, investigation and resolution of complaints by school personnel or parents regarding
the use of restraint or seclusion, including the designation of school officials who are authorized to receive
complaints. The procedures for resolving complaints shall require that any complaint regarding the use of
restraint or seclusion is investigated and written findings are issued within thirty (30) days of the
complaint’s receipt. If a complaint regarding the use of restraint or seclusion is unresolved at the school
building level, it shall be directed to the superintendent in accordance with the complaint processes
established by the Board in Policy (insert reference to board policy on complaints).

Section 4. Implementation

The superintendent shall ensure that appropriate staff are provided training by programs recommended by the
Vermont Agency of Education unless a plan is submitted to the Secretary of Education demonstrating how a
training program not recommended by the Agency of Education contains the elements required of
recommended programs and meets the purposes of the State Board of Education rules on restraint and
seclusion.

The superintendent shall report annually to the Board on the implementation of the administrative procedures
required by this policy, and shall include any recommendations for changes, if any, related to school
district/supervisory union policies or procedures.
VSBA Version: January 25, 2022

Date Warned.:

Date Adopted.:

Legal Reference(s): | Vermont State Board of Education Rule 4500-4510
16 V.S.A. 563

Cross Reference: C1 Student Records

39



WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED POLICY: C34
UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

WARNED: 6/1/19
Board of Directors’ Policy
ADOPTED: 6/26/19
EFFECTIVE: 7/1/19

USE OF RESTRAINT AND SECLUSION

Section 1. Statement of Purpose

1.1 It is the policy of this unified union school district that students not be subjected to inappropriate
restraint or seclusion as defined by Vermont State Board of Education Rule 4500. It is the
district/supervisory union’s intent to create and maintain a positive and safe learning environment, and
promote positive behavioral interventions and supports in district schools. This policy is further
intended to assist in creating a common understanding within the district of appropriate interventions
by district staff.

Section 2. Definitions. The following terms, as defined in State Board Rule 4500.3, shall apply to this
policy.

2.1 Behavioral Intervention Plan means a plan that details strategies to address behaviors that
impede learning, or are ongoing, and do not readily respond to general intervention or classroom
management techniques, by teaching pro-social skills and other positive replacement behaviors. The
plan may include positive strategies, program or curricular modifications, and supplementary aids and
supports required to address problem behaviors.

2.2 Chemical Restraint means a drug, medication or chemical used on a student to control behavior
or restrict movement that is not:
a. Prescribed by a student’s licensed physician for the standard treatment of a student’s medical
or psychiatric condition; and
b. Administered as prescribed by the licensed physician.

2.3 Functional Behavioral Assessment means the analysis of a student’s behavior patterns before,
during, and after rule-breaking or other inappropriate behavior for the purpose of guiding the
development of a behavioral intervention plan.

2.4 Mechanical Restraint means the use of any device or object that restricts a student’s movement or
limits a student’s sensory or motor functions unless under the direction of a healthcare professional for
medical or therapeutic purposes. The term does not include devices implemented by trained school
personnel, or utilized by a student for the specific and approved therapeutic and safety purposes for
which such devices were designed including:

a. Restraints for medical immobilization,

b. Adaptive devices or mechanical supports used to achieve proper body

position, balance or alignment;

c. Vehicle safety restraints including a seat belt or harness used for balance or

40



safety on a car or bus; or
d. Seat belts in wheelchairs or on toilets.

2.5 Parent means:
a. A biological or adoptive parent of the child;
b. A legal guardian of the child,
c. A person acting in place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent,
stepparent or other relative with whom the child lives, or a person legally responsible for the
child’s welfare;
d. A foster parent or developmental home provider who has been appointed the educational
surrogate parent by the Educational surrogate Parent Program; or
e. An educational surrogate parent.

2.6 Physical Escort means the temporary touching or holding, without the use of force, of the hand,
wrist, arm, or back of a student who is exhibiting minimal resistance for the purpose of directing
movement from one place to another.

2.7 Physical Restraint means the use of physical force to prevent an imminent and substantial risk of
bodily harm to the student or others. Physical restraint does not include:
a. Momentary periods of physical restriction by direct person-to-person contact, accomplished
with limited force and designed either
1. to prevent a student from completing an act that would result in potential physical
harm to himself/herself or another person; or
i1. to remove a disruptive student who is unwilling to leave the area voluntarily;
b. The minimum contact necessary to physically escort a student from one place to another;
c. Hand-over-hand assistance with feeding or task completion; or
d. Techniques prescribed by a qualified medical professional for reason of safety or for
therapeutic or medical treatment.

2.8 Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports means an approach to preventing and
responding to targeted behavior that:

a. Is based on evidence-based practices;

b. Is proactive and instructional, rather than reactive;

c. Can operate on individual, group, classroom, or school wide levels;

d. Includes a system of continual data collection; and

e. Relies on data-driven decisions.

2.9 Prone Physical Restraint means holding a student face down on his or her stomach using physical
force for the purpose of controlling the student’s movement.

2.10 School means a learning environment receiving public funds or over which the
Vermont Department of Education has regulatory authority.

2.11 School Personnel means individuals working in schools as defined in 4500.3(10) who are
employed by the school or who perform services for the school on a contractual basis, and school
resource officers, while acting in that capacity.

2.12. Seclusion means the confinement of a student alone in a room or area from which the student is

prevented or reasonably believes he or she will be prevented from leaving. Seclusion does not include
time-out where a student is not left alone and is under adult supervision.

41



2.13 Substantial Risk means an imminent threat of bodily harm where there is an ability to enact such
harm. Substantial risk shall exist only if all other less restrictive alternatives to defuse the situation
have been exhausted or failed or the level of risk prohibits exhausting other means.

2.14 Supine Physical Restraint means holding a student on his or her back using physical force for
the purpose of controlling the student’s movement.

2.15 Student means a student enrolled in a school as defined in paragraph 10.

Section 3. Policy

3.1 The superintendent or his or her designee shall develop administrative procedures to ensure district
compliance with the requirements of Vermont State Board of Education Rule 4500. The
administrative procedures shall include at least the following components.

3.2 Prohibitions against the imposition on students of mechanical or chemical restraints by school
personnel and contract service providers. !

3.3 Prohibitions against the imposition on students of physical restraint in circumstances designated as
impermissible by State Board of Education rules.?

3.4 Restrictions on the use of physical restraint and seclusion to circumstances allowed by State Board
of Education rules, including provisions that allow the inclusion of restraint or seclusion as part of a
student’s individual safety plan only when that plan meets the conditions set forth in State Board of
Education rules, and provisions that require the termination of restraint or seclusion, and the
monitoring of students subjected to restraint or seclusion, as established by State Board of Education
rules.’

3.5 Procedures to ensure that only school personnel or contract service providers who are trained in the
use of restraint and seclusion are authorized to impose restraint or seclusion unless, due to the
unforeseeable nature of the danger of a particular circumstance, trained personnel are not immediately
available.*

3.6 Processes to ensure that impositions of restraint or seclusion are reported to school administrators,
parents, superintendents and the Commissioner of the Vermont Department of Education under
circumstances and within the time limitations required by State Board of Education rules.’

3.7 Processes to ensure that each school in the district maintains written records of each use of restraint
and seclusion in accordance with the requirements of State Board of Education rules.®

3.8 Procedures to ensure that each school in the district implements follow-up procedures that are
consistent with the requirements of State Board of Education rules.’

! See Vermont State Board of Education Manual of Rules and Practices Rule 4501.1.
2 See SBE Rule 4501.2.

3 See SBE Rule 4502.

4 See SBE Rules 4502.3 and 4502 4.

3> See SBE Rule 4503.

¢ See SBE Rule 4504.

7 See SBE Rule 4505.

42



3.9 Annual notification procedures to ensure that each school in the district informs school personnel
and parents of students enrolled in the school of the policies and procedures pertaining to the use of
physical restraint and seclusion, and the intent of the school to emphasize the use of positive
behavioral interventions as well as supports and its intention to avoid the use of physical restraint or
seclusion to address targeted student behavior.®

3.10 Processes for the filing, investigation and resolution of complaints by school personnel or parents
regarding the use of restraint or seclusion, including the designation of school officials who are
authorized to receive complaints. The procedures for resolving complaints shall require that any
complaint regarding the use of restraint or seclusion is investigated and written findings are issued
within thirty (30) days of the complaint’s receipt. If a complaint regarding the use of restraint or
seclusion is unresolved at the school building level, it shall be directed to the superintendent in
accordance with the complaint processes established by the Board in Policy B22.°

Section 4. Implementation

The superintendent shall ensure that appropriate staff are provided training by programs recommended
by the Vermont Department of Education unless he or she submits a plan to the Commissioner of
Education demonstrating how a training program not recommended by the Department of Education
contains the elements required of recommended programs and meets the purposes of the State Board of
Education rules on restraint and seclusion. '

The superintendent shall report annually to the Board on the implementation of the administrative
procedures required by this policy, and shall include in his or her report recommendations for changes,
if any, to related school district/supervisory union policies or procedures. '

8 See SBE Rule 4506.

% See SBE Rule 4507

10 See SBE Rule 4509, 4510.
1116 V.S.A. 563

43



Required

WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED
UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY: F46
9.17.25

Board of Directors’ Policy WARNED:
BEHAVIORAL THREAT
ASSESSMENT TEAMS ADOPTED:

EFFECTIVE:
Policy

It is the policy of WCUUSD that the School Board may, from time to time, decide to fly a flag on
school grounds, in addition to the United States and Vermont flags, in accordance with the criteria
set forth below. In all cases, the raising and display of a flag on a school flagpole in this District
shall remain a matter of the Board’s discretion and shall be considered an expressive act of the
School District itself. This Policy is not intended to and does not create a forum for speech by
students or any members of the school community.

Criteria include:
* The request to fly a flag must originate from a WCUUSD student group.

* The flag must represent ideas that align with and support the current District Mission, Goals, and
Student Learning Outcomes.

* The flag may not depict symbols or language that are understood to promote hate or the supremacy
of one group over others.

* The flag may not include content that is vulgar, religious, commercial, or subject to trademark or
similar restrictions.

* The flag shall remain on the school flagpole through the end of the school year and shall then be
removed, unless the Board elects a different timeframe.

* The Board may invite comment from the community, including students. School administration, in
consultation with the School Board, will develop operating procedures to implement this Policy.

44



Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

East Montpelicr Calais

YV 2

—~— -
- -

1130 Gallison Hill Road

Montpelier, VT 05602 Steven Dellinger-Pate
Phone (802) 229-0553 Superintendent
Fax (802) 229-2761

U-32

\4

Middlesex Worcester

TO: WCUUSD School Board
FROM: Susanne Gann, WCUUSD Business Administrator
Chris O’Brien, Director of Facilities
RE: Combined FY 27 Capital Improvement Project Scope & Budget Update
DATE: September 12,2025

Connection to Strategic Plan

The capital improvement work directly supports Goal #1 of the WCUUSD Strategic Plan,
which emphasizes maintaining safe, welcoming, and well-equipped learning environments
for all students. By investing in essential building systems, such as heating, kitchen
facilities, and safety infrastructure, these projects ensure that students and staff have
functional, efficient, and reliable spaces that foster academic success and well-being.
Prioritizing these improvements aligns with the district’'s commitment to sustaining high-
quality facilities that enhance teaching and learning outcomes across all schools.

Review

At the June 25, 2025 meeting, the School Board authorized the development of the scope
and budget for capital projects, with a rough estimate totaling $1,082,000. These estimates
were developed prior to determining the full scope of each project was determined. An
inflation estimate of $59,645 was also included in the Multi-year Capital Improvement
Budget, for a total amount of $1,141,645.

At the August 12, 2025 meeting, the Finance Committee asked questions to determine
which option to proceed with regarding the continued use of the current oil boiler, located
upstairs at Doty Elementary School. At the September 9, 2025 meeting, the Finance
Committee was given additional information to advise the choice between the two options
below.

1. Replace the current upstairs oil boiler system with a new pellet boiler and gas back
up system and create a new interior boiler room downstairs. This option removes
the risk of damage from possible oil leaks and has an estimated cost of $657,494.

2. Create a new interior boiler room downstairs with a pellet system and continue to
use the current oil boiler upstairs as the backup system. This option substantially

45



Combined FY 27 Capital Improvement Project Scope & Budget Update

reduces the risk of damage from possible oil leaks and has an estimated cost of

$445,620.

The Finance Committee discussed the potential risks and mitigation measures. The
Committee was comfortable with the reduced risk, and decided to recommend the second
option to the Board for approval.

FY 2026-27 Capital Improvement Projects - $1,226,901

The soft costs and 10% contingency are allocated to each project based on the percent of
the total combined project budget.

. Updated
Previous Estimate (soft
Project Description Status Location Rough
costs +
Numbers .
contingency)
New primary pellet boiler in
new interior downstairs SCOE’;T% ?e“t:get Doty $480,000 $445,620
boiler room P
Scope & Budget
Grease trap Complete Doty $20,000 $49,097,
Grease trap Scope & Budget Calais $20,000 $50,609
Complete
Remove oil tank Scope & Budget U-32 $250,000 $230,697
Complete
Kitchen reconfiguration Scope & Budget U-32 $250,000 $418,015
Complete
Backup furnace Scope & Budget | 11 Office $12,000 $32,863
Complete

Recommended Board Action: The Board authorize the completion of the recommended
projects as identified above for an amount not to exceed $1,226,901 and approve the
District moving forward with bid document preparation and bidding as necessary.

Page 2

46



WCUUSD School Board

Superintendent Personnel Summary and Recommendations

. New Hire Nominations (for 25-26 school year)

. Retirement

. Re-Hires

Betsy VanDerlip - .40 FTE Special Education Teacher
. Resignations
. Change in FTE:

. Long-Term Substitutes (25-26 School Year)

. Change in Position

47



Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

1130 Gallison Hill Road
Montpelier, VT 05602

Phone (B02) 229-0553
Fax (802) 229-2761

W
13-

L L

TEACHER NOMINATION

CANDIDATE RECOMMENDED TO SUPERINTENDENT AND BOARD:

Betsy VanDerlip

Placement: M30+, Step O ($35,746)

POSITION: Special Education Teacher

FTE: O.4FTE

REASON FOR VACANCY: __Retirement/Resignation XX New Position __Leave of Absence

SCHOOL BUILDING: WCUUSD - U-32

SEARCH COMMITTEE COMPOSITION: Administrators X Teachers

(numbers and groups represented)

Support Staff Parents/Community Members

Other:

EDUCATIONAL PREPARATION:
(College, degree, date obtained)

PROCESS OVERVIEW AND REASONS
FOR RECOMMENDATION: (objective, not
subjective, narrative ofskills and experience of
the recommended candidate & summary of
reference check results)

Betsy retired from her previous position as a full-time special
educator at Berlin Elementary in June 2025. She is an asset to
our district and has shown interest in maintaining part-time
employment.

(If the board has additional questions about the candidate or other applicants, this should be discussed in executive
session due to privacy rights and should not include information that would not be asked as a part of an interview
process such as marital status, where candidate lives, etc.)

NOMINATED BY — P e _9{=sfa¥
al/Administrator Date

RECOMMENDED BY )BY_

Superintendent

BOARD APPROVAL DATE

Date

48




Washington Central Unified Union School District

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

East Montpelier Calais

1130 Gallison Hill Road B,I:_ ~ A
Montpelier, VT 05602 V
Phone (802) 229-0553
Fax (802) 229-2761

U-32

Washington Central Unified Union Midtsex  Woroter
School Board Meeting
9.3.25
7:15-9:15 PM
(In-Person & Virtual)
U-32 Middle & High School
930 Gallison Hill Rd
Montpelier, VT

Present: Superintendent Dellinger-Pate, Flor Diaz Smith, Daisy Scarzello, Daniel Keeney, Chris
McVeigh, Jeannie Phillips, Becca Tatistcheff, Patrick Whelley, Anna Matheson, Marilyn Martin,
Deborah Bloom, Zach Sullivan, Amelia Contrada, Gillian Fuqua, Ursula Stanley, Kealy Sloan,
Natasha Eckart, Diane Nichols-Fleming, Mckalyn Leclerc, Jen Miller Arsenault, Lisa McCarthy,
Alison Fayle, Ari Preston, Beckah Mandel, David Delcore, David Lawrence, Ela Chapin, Michael
Sherwin, Veronica Fair, Elizabeth Brown, Alicia Lyford, Ellen Knoedler, Elliot Burg, Susan Clark

1. CONFIGURATION COMMITTEE COMBINED MEETING UNDER SEPARATE
COVER

2. Call to Order: Flor Diaz Smith called the meeting to order at 7:37 p.m.

3. Welcome
3.1. Adjustments to the Agenda: no changes
3.2. Reception of Guests
3.3. Public Comments-Time limit strictly enforced, see note 15 minutes: Flor Diaz Smith
noted that we are allowing 1.5 minutes for comments.

Susan Clark, Middlesex - noted that over 125 people had signed and sent a letter to the
board. She stated that the alternative to the state’s imposed model is that we can state our
own terms. She asked to consider a supervisory union model, which would allow us to
govern through our existing boards. Other school boards around this state have made this
request. She noted that the time for action is now. She stated that a supervisory union is a
more democratic model.

Beckah Mandel reiterated what Susan Clark had stated; she had sent the referenced letter to
the board; she stated that she is already feeling some of the growing pains of our currently
merged board, managing six schools. She asked about libraries across the district - wonders

49



whether there is a librarian or a library program at Rumney right now. She asked the board
to urge the redistricting committee to allow us to form a supervisory union. Steven
Dellinger-Pate stated that there is a library program at Rumney at this time and he
encouraged people to reach out to the school principal.

Lisa McCarthy, Calais resident, principal at Craftsbury Academy. Encouraged the board to
pursue a supervisory union model; the potential implications of Act 73 will affect rural
communities. What is the effect on small towns with no voice in a much larger
configuration?

David Lawrence - spoke about the democratic process and the importance of all having a
voice.

4. Board Operations
4.1. Review and Accept Board Norms: Flor Diaz Smith had shared an updated document
based on previous discussions and comments. She invited discussion from the board.

Diane Nichols-Fleming asked to include the first bullet in the norms:

Amelia Contrada suggested adding it to the bullet: Respect Each Other. Board members
will address the topics up for debate and not the person. Personal attacks are out of order.

Zach Sullivan suggested including the fourth on the list of the proposed new bullets around
preparation for board meetings.

Daniel Keeney stated that if the “Respect Each Other” is expanded as discussed above, it
seems redundant to have a separate “Assume Positive Intent.”

Elizabeth Brown stated that “personal attack”™ is a subjective idea and she would like to
include the “Assume Positive Intent” bullet to more clearly delineate.

Flor Diaz Smith suggested editing this document to reflect tonight’s conversation so the
board can consider it at the next board meeting.

Diane Nichols-Fleming stated that she feels it is important to spell out respectful exchange
between board members, in light of the current climate in local and federal government.

Natasha Eckart indicated that she does not feel that the fourth bullet (about preparation in
advance) should be included using that verbiage.

Daniel Keeney stated that this seems implicit in the role of the board and he is inclined to
agree with Natasha on this.

Amelia Contrada suggested, “In good faith, exercise informed decisions responsibly.”

Chris McVeigh does not agree with the changes to the second bullet around asking
clarifying questions during public comment, and the responsibility of the steering
committee. He also stated that the bullet re: “Role of the Board” assumes that everyone has
the same understanding/ perception on the role of the board.

50



Ursula Stanley reminded the board that the norms are considered “aspirational” and she does
not see them as a tool to be used to “call other board members out...”Discussion followed
around public comment, dialogue, clarifying questions, etc.

Daniel Keeney suggested providing the policy committee with an opportunity to address this
document. He suggested that a smaller group workshop this document.

Patrick Whelley spoke about public comment. There are times when dialogue is important
and clarifying questions are needed. He feels that it is important to be clear about this in
meetings so that the community knows what to expect during public comment.

Chris McVeigh stated that this is a governing document and does not belong within the work
of the Policy Committee.

Diane Nichols-Fleming reminded the board that the context when these norms were created
was during a time when we needed guardrails. We are in a different place now and it makes
sense to tweak the document to reflect conversation tonight. Flor Diaz Smith noted that the
Steering Committee would work on editing this document.

4.2. Updated Work Plan Review: Superintendent Dellinger-Pate had provided this document.
Kealy Sloan noted that the Communications Committee meetings need to be included in this
document.

4.3. Career Center Resolution: Daniel Keeney moved: This board resolves, insofar as full-
day educational programming in a single location best optimizes educational outcomes
for our district's students, that the capital budget proposal for a new Central Vermont
Career Center include sufficient facilities to accommodate that full-day programming,
including a gymnasium. Seconded by Zach Sullivan, this motion carried unanimously.

4.4. Legislative Update and Planning: Chris McVeigh suggested putting this on the next
meeting agenda and that we consider advocating for a supervisory union model. He would
like to invite a guest speaker to the meeting; Diane Nichols-Fleming asked whether this
information (proposed guest speaker) would be available for the next steering committee
meeting. She stated that she believes this legislation is greatly flawed. Ursula Stanley
suggested that the board not plan to take action until the October meeting, to give time to
consider and digest information. Steven Dellinger-Pate asked the board, what kind of
expertise/ guest speaker do you have in mind? Daniel Keeney: someone intimately familiar
with the new legislation. Flor Diaz Smith shared intentions to have a meeting, invite
legislators for dialogue and better understanding of this recent legislation. Patrick Whelley
asked, what is the timeline of action? To have any hope of affecting any outcome? Flor Diaz
Smith stated that there is a December deadline and there is an opportunity for public
comment in October. The board will address this issue at the October 8 board meeting.
Diane Nichols-Fleming asked, is there somewhere to compare what is going on, statewide,
what is the response across the state?

S. Personnel
5.1. Approve New Teachers, Resignations, Leave of Absence, and Changes in FTE: Ursula
Stanley moved to approve the new hire nomination: (for 25-26 school year) Phelps
Griffin (U-32 Middle School Science) Seconded by Zach Sullivan, this motion carried
unanimously. Ursula Stanley moved to accept the resignation of Jason Woodard - U-32

51



Classroom Teacher (Middle School Science). Seconded by Zach Sullivan, this motion
carried unanimously. Ursula Stanley moved to approve the hire: Long-Term
Substitute (25-26 School Year) James Lignos (LTS for MS Science and MS Math).
Seconded by Amelia Contrada, this motion carried unanimously.

6. Consent Agenda
6.1. Approve Minutes of 8.20.25: Patrick Whelley moved to approve the minutes of August
20, 2025. Seconded by Zach Sullivan. Chris McVeigh noted that the language in the
minutes around “review and adopt board norms” does not accurately reflect what he stated.
This motion carried, with noted edit.

7. Future Agenda Items

8. Board Reflections
Zach Sullivan stated that, regarding the need for the board to be responsive to the public, he
believes the board should work toward filling the vacant board seat from Berlin. He stated that
last year, the student council had come to the board to present in advance of budget development.
He would like to have that experience again.

Natasha Eckart suggested that we invite the student council to the next board meeting so that
they can be present for the discussion around Act 73. She stated that the agenda tonight was
confusing, with the Configuration Committee agenda being from 6:15 - 7:00; however the intent
was that it be a regular board meeting as well at that time. November 7 bond vote for career
center - add this to the calendar

Kealy Sloan stated that she is excited to have so many events and invitations across all of the
school towns and thanked administrators for making this information available.

Daniel Keeney stated that the work plan now has locations of community meetings. He expects
that the Friends of Calais will collaborate at the January meeting in the same way that the
Worcester town had created a joint event this past year.

9. Public Comments: Time limit strictly enforced, see note 15 minutes: Susan Clark shared
information about other Vermont towns that have expressed the desire to form supervisory union
in light of Act 73, and she encouraged this board to make this statement; she spoke again about
the importance of democracy and local voice.

10. Adjourn: The meeting adjourned by consensus at 8:50 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Lisa Grace, Board Recording Secretary

52



	9.17.25 School Board Agenda
	COLT Report 9.17.25
	Pre-K memo
	Washington Central Pre-K Task Force – Update to the Board

	Principal Report 9.17.25
	September 25 CS Board Report 
	1. Board Approve FY 27 Budget Development Timeline
	2. FY 27 Budget Development Timeline
	Act 73 Resolution
	MRPS Act 46 Study Committee Letter re Representation Plan
	Equal Protection Implications of Keeping WCUUSD Structure
	Policy Workplan_25-26
	Board Norms Memo
	FY 27 Capital Board Memo 9-17-25
	Personnel form 9.17.25
	Betsy VanDerlip Nomination Form-
	9.3.25 WCUUSD School Board unapproved minutes



